## City of Somerville, Massachusetts Matters of Business of the City Council

#### **REGULAR MEETING MINUTES**

April 11, 2019, 7:00 PM City Council Chamber, City Hall-93 Highland Avenue

NOTICE: This is NOT the official version of the City Council's minutes. While reasonable efforts have been made to assure the accuracy of the data provided, do not rely on this information without first checking with the City Clerk.

#### **OPENING OF THE MEETING**

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Ward Seven City Councilor Katjana Ballantyne.

Attendee Name	Title	Status	Arrived
Stephanie Hirsch	City Councilor At Large	Absent	
Wilfred N. Mbah	City Councilor At Large	Present	
Mary Jo Rossetti	City Councilor At Large	Present	
William A. White Jr.	City Councilor At Large	Present	
Matthew McLaughlin	Ward One City Councilor	Present	
Jefferson Thomas ("J.T.") Scott	Ward Two City Councilor	Present	
Ben Ewen-Campen	Ward Three City Councilor	Present	
Jesse Clingan	Ward Four City Councilor	Present	
Mark Niedergang	Ward Five City Councilor	Present	
Lance L. Davis	Ward Six City Councilor	Present	
Katjana Ballantyne	Ward Seven City Councilor	Present	

1. Roll Call 207907 (ID:20790) Call of the Roll.

Councilor Mbah sponsored a moment of silence for Maria Lourdes Meneses.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

2. Minutes 207908 (ID:20791)

Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting, March 14, 2019.

RESULT: APPROVED

#### **CITATIONS**

#### **PUBLIC HEARINGS**

3. Grant of Location 207909 (ID:20735) Submitted by Eversource to install 29 feet of conduit in Rush St, from Utility Pole 302/3 to a point of pickup at 20-24 Rush St.

The President opened the public hearing. Eversource representative Joanne Callender discussed the work to be completed. Councilor McLaughlin asked about impacts on traffic, and was told there would be a police detail present. With no other speakers, the President closed the public hearing.

#### ORDERS, ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS AND MOTIONS OF MEMBERS

4. Order 207910 (ID:20714)

By City Councilor Ballantyne

That the Director of Sustainability and Environment present the upcoming plan for Community Choice Electricity Aggregation.

Oliver Sellers-Garcia, Director of Sustainability and Environment, Philip Carr of Good Energy, and Anna Goldman, Randi Saltiziac and Jessica Garrett of Mothers Out Front, all described Community Choice Electricity, a program that allows municipalities to select an electricity supplier to reduce costs and bring new renewable energy into the supply. In Somerville, the average household savings is \$145, and the renewable energy is from wind and solar power. Utilities are required to purchase increasing amounts of electricity from renewable sources, and estimates show that Somerville's consumption should be 50% clean by 2040. The Council discussed ways to support and expand the program.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Open Space, Environment and Energy Committee

5. Order 207911 (ID:20715)

By City Councilor Ballantyne

That the Director of Sustainability and Environment discuss the FY18 and FY19 recycling and trash tonnage, impacts, proposed changes and other issues pertinent to this topic.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Open Space, Environment and Energy Committee

6. Order 207912 (ID:20716)

By City Councilor Ballantyne, Mbah

That the Director of Sustainability and Environment and the Director of Purchasing discuss the Procurement Sustainability Policy, to purchase products from environmentally responsible companies.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Open Space, Environment and Energy Committee

7. Resolution 207913 (ID:20767)

By City Councilor Ballantyne, Ewen-Campen, Scott, Clingan, Davis, Niedergang, Rossetti, McLaughlin, Mbah, White Jr.

That the Administration have Port-a-Potties available at the public parks for the 2019 summer months.

Councilor Niedergang said port-a-potties should be provided for families in the City.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Youth Services Committee

8. Resolution 207914 (ID:20786)

By City Councilor Ballantyne

That Administration investigate hiring a landscaper to maintain the investments in our city parks' planted areas, softscape, flowerbeds etc.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Open Space, Environment and Energy Committee

9. Order 207915 (ID:20770)

By City Councilor Niedergang

That the Director of SPCD explain to the Traffic and Parking Committee why strategically-placed temporary speed bumps would not be more effective in calming traffic than plastic flex posts, many of which have been down and out-of-service within a day or two of the recent bridge closures.

President Ballantyne said the City is going to test some temporary speed bumps on Powderhouse Blvd. If successful, permanent ones will be installed there.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Traffic and Parking Committee

10. Order 207916 (ID:20771)

By City Councilor Niedergang

That the Director of SPCD evaluate with the Traffic and Parking Committee the value and impact of flex posts for traffic calming, and on plans going forward for their use and maintenance.

Councilor Niedergang has received lots of comments about the flex posts that have been knocked down, stayed down, and not been replaced. He said they were just an experiment, costing only \$40 each, and he gave the Administration credit for trying them out. He would like to hear what alternatives could be used.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Traffic and Parking Committee

11. Order 207917 (ID:20774)

By City Councilor Ewen-Campen

That the Director of Traffic and Parking implement traffic calming measures on Avon Street.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Traffic and Parking Committee

12. Order 207918 (ID:20772)

By City Councilor Ewen-Campen

That the Director of Traffic and Parking urgently prioritize pedestrian safety at the intersection of Walnut Street and Highland Avenue, which was identified as one of the most unsafe intersections in the city.

Councilor Ewen-Campen said he was stunned when shown a map of pedestrian injuries across the City, with one of the biggest red spots at the intersection of Walnut Street and Highland Avenue. A safe intersection is needed since the high school, the library and senior housing are all located there.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Traffic and Parking Committee

13. Order 207919 (ID:20773)

By City Councilor Ewen-Campen

That the Director of Traffic and Parking prioritize pedestrian safety at the intersection of Vinal and Highland Avenues with re-painting and additional signage.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Traffic and Parking Committee

14. Communication By City Councilor Ewen-Campen

207920 (ID:20775) Reporting on the meeting about parking at the High School held on April 8, 2019.

Councilor Ewen-Campen updated the Council on the parking at the High School. There was some unexpected news received recently that the 35-space lot on Medford St behind the High School, which we anticipated losing months from now, will now be lost at the end of April. There is an urgent need to find temporary parking for teachers. The Administration has proposed using 90 Washington St as temporary parking, with a shuttle, just to get through the school year. The City ha released an RFP for offsite parking for teachers, staff, etc.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

15. Communication By City Councilor Rossetti

207921 (ID:20769) Reporting on the High School Building Committee meeting of April 8, 2019.

Councilor Rossetti reported that Phase 1 is still on time. Plans are being made to relocate some of the Vocational Education programs next September, and parents and staff will be kept up to date. The athletic field is back on the construction list. The Committee is still trying to re-build the contingency fund.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

16. Communication By City Councilor Davis

207922 (ID:20781) Announcing the groundbreaking ceremony on April 25 at 11:15 AM, kicking off of the West Branch Library renovation project.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

17. Ordinance 207923 (ID:20776)

By City Councilor Davis, Ewen-Campen, McLaughlin, Clingan, Scott, Ballantyne, Mbah

Submitting for approval the Somerville Welcoming Community Ordinance, to establish Somerville as a Welcoming Community, to declare that all are welcome here, and to increase public confidence in city government with guidelines for our voluntary involvement in federal immigration enforcement.

Councilor Davis said you hear all the time that Somerville is a City of immigrants and has been for many, many years. But today, it has a different meaning. In 2014, the Board of Alderman passed the Trust Act, but the law has changed since then. Lund vs. the Commonwealth made it clear that retaining somebody at ICE's request was not constitutional. He proposed an updated version, the Somerville Welcoming Community Ordinance.

RESULT: REFERRED FOR RECOMMENDATION

**FOLLOWUP:** Legislative Matters Committee

18. Resolution 207924 (ID:20780)

By City Councilor Davis, Clingan, Ewen-Campen, Scott, Ballantyne, Niedergang, Rossetti, McLaughlin, Mbah, White Jr.

Urging the State Board of Building Regulations and Standards to issue an official interpretation on the classification and treatment of Short-Term Rentals under the State Building Code, as requested by the Inspectional Services Department.

Councilor Davis requested an official interpretation of the definition of a short-term rental.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

19. Order 207925 (ID:20778)

By City Councilor Davis

That the Chief of Police and the Director of Inspectional Services advise the Ward 6 Councilor how many decibel meter readers the city owns and how and when they are deployed.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

20. Order 207926 (ID:20779) By City Councilor Davis

That the Chief of Police address noise ordinance violations by street performances in Davis Square.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

21. Order 207927 (ID:20777) By City Councilor Davis

That the Director of Traffic and Parking reset the NO LEFT TURN (at certain times) sign at the corner of College and Kidder Avenues so it's clearly visible to traffic traveling south on College Avenue. (2nd request)

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Traffic and Parking Committee

22. Order 207928 (ID:20783)

By City Councilor McLaughlin

That the Director of SPCD replace all flex posts in Ward 1 and place them further apart so cars won't run them over.

Councilor McLaughlin said that every flex post in his Ward has been run over and hasn't been replaced yet. He had been promised for several years painted speed bumps (optical illusions) to help prevent speeding but it still hasn't happened. Now is the time it is really needed.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

23. Order 207929 (ID:20784) By City Councilor McLaughlin

That the Director of SPCD utilize painted bump-outs and street art at every intersection where flex posts are presently located.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

24. Resolution 207930 (ID:20785)

By City Councilor McLaughlin

That the Administration utilize the parking lots on Glen and Tufts Streets, 90 Washington Street, and any others available, for neighborhood use during the GLX construction.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

25. Order 207931 (ID:20782) By City Councilor McLaughlin

That the Director of Traffic and Parking place a NO PARKING sign on the corner of Chester Avenue and McGrath Highway to allow drivers to see oncoming traffic.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

26. Communication By City Councilor McLaughlin

207932 (ID:20792) Commenting on the recent discussion on affordable housing and the zoning overhaul in the Land Use Committee's April 2 meeting.

Councilor McLaughlin submitted comments about affordable housing and asked his colleagues to read them. He extolled the virtues of triple deckers, and urged that third units be encouraged as part of the solution.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

#### 27. **FINANCE COMMITTEE**

A. Committee Report 207933 (ID:20726) Report of the Committee on Finance, meeting as a Committee of the Whole on April 9, 2019.

Councilor White reported on the items discussed at the meeting. The first item was the proposed water and sewer rates for FY20. The Water and Sewer Director argued that the current water and sewer infrastructure is outdated and in need of repair. The MA DEP could force the city to take action on stormwater runoff remediation. The Administration described a plan that contemplates bonding \$301M, funded by a 6% increase on water rates and a 7.5% increase on sewer rates each year for the next decade. The Committee also discussed raising the living wage to \$15/hour and amending the Powder House Land Disposition Agreement to lengthen the time of completion by 6 months.

**RESULT: APPROVED** 

B. Order 205478 (ID:18435) By City Councilor White Jr.

That the Director of Purchasing, with the Administration, provide this Board with an analysis of the cost of raising the living wage to \$15.00 per hour, and determine if a more appropriate inflation adjuster may be used.

**RESULT:** PLACED ON FILE

C. Officer's 206286 (ID:19026)

Director of Capital Projects and Planning submitting the Public Safety Communication Feasibility Study/Programming and Site Evaluation Report (related to #s 206003, #206004, and #206005).

> **RESULT:** PLACED ON FILE

D. Mayor's Request 207088 (ID:19892) Requesting the appropriation of \$370,729 from the Park Stabilization Fund to pay for FY2019 incurred debt service for park renovation.

E. Mayor's

**RESULT:** PLACED ON FILE

Request 207089 (ID:19893) Requesting the appropriation of \$326,882 from the Capital Stabilization Fund to pay for FY2019 Debt Service.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

F. Mayor's Request 207336 (ID:20067) Requesting approval of an Amendment to the Powder House Land Disposition Agreement.

**RESULT:** APPROVED. [UNANIMOUS]

Mbah, Rossetti, White Jr., McLaughlin, Scott, Ewen-**AYES:** 

Campen, Clingan, Niedergang, Davis, Ballantyne

ABSENT: Hirsch G. Mayor's Request 207672 (ID:20468) Requesting an appropriation and authorization to borrow \$596,450 in a bond for the costs of installing a new boiler in City Hall.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

H. Mayor's Request 207754 (ID:20565) Requesting approval of proposed amendments to the Living Wage Ordinance to raise the living wage to \$15 per hour starting in FY20.

RESULT: ORDINANCE ORDAINED. [UNANIMOUS]

**AYES:** Mbah, Rossetti, White Jr., McLaughlin, Scott, Ewen-

Campen, Clingan, Niedergang, Davis, Ballantyne

**ABSENT:** Hirsch

I. Mayor's Request 207755 (ID:20539) Requesting approval to appropriate \$136,450 from the Medical Marijuana Stabilization Fund for substance use prevention, community/parent/student education, and Naloxone training and supplies.

**RESULT:** APPROVED. [UNANIMOUS]

**AYES:** Mbah, Rossetti, White Jr., McLaughlin, Scott, Ewen-

Campen, Clingan, Niedergang, Davis, Ballantyne

**ABSENT:** Hirsch

J. Mayor's Request 207756 (ID:20540) Requesting the appropriation of \$85,000 from Unreserved Fund Balance ("Free Cash") to the City Clerk's Office Equipment-Capitalized Account in order to purchase and install high density shelving in the new municipal archives at 42 Cross St.

#### RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

K. Mayor's Request 207757 (ID:20463) Requesting approval to pay a prior year invoice using \$4,573.61 in available funds in the Economic Development Division's Ordinary Maintenance Account for Art Farm soil removal.

RESULT: APPROVED

L. Mayor's Request 207758 (ID:20531) Requesting the acceptance of a grant of \$63,883 from HUD to support the Somerville Continuum of Care planning efforts and the City's role as CoC Lead.

RESULT: APPROVED

M. Mayor's Request 207759 (ID:20533) Requesting acceptance of a \$32,000 no match grant from the MA Department of Environmental Protection for the Public Works Department's Recycling Dividends Program.

N. Mayor's Request 207760 (ID:20530) Requesting the authorization of an increase of the Planning and Zoning Notice Revolving Fund Expenditure Cap to \$75,000 for FY19.

RESULT: APPROVED

O. Officer's Purch Communication wage.

Purchasing Director responding to #205478 with an analysis of a \$15 living wage.

207769 (ID:20550)

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

P. Mayor's Request 207895 (ID:20703) Requesting a transfer of \$460,110 from the East Somerville Community School Rehabilitation Insurance Proceeds Account to the Capital Stabilization Fund for a new boiler for City Hall.

RESULT: APPROVED. [UNANIMOUS]

**AYES:** Mbah, Rossetti, White Jr., McLaughlin, Scott, Ewen-Campen, Clingan, Niedergang, Davis, Ballantyne

**ABSENT:** Hirsch

Q. Mayor's Request 207896 (ID:20704) Requesting the appropriation of \$596,450 from the Capital Stabilization Fund for the installation of a new boiler in City Hall.

RESULT: APPROVED. [UNANIMOUS]

**AYES:** Mbah, Rossetti, White Jr., McLaughlin, Scott, Ewen-

Campen, Clingan, Niedergang, Davis, Ballantyne

**ABSENT:** Hirsch

#### 28. LAND USE COMMITTEE

A. Committee Report 207934 (ID:20719) Report of the Committee on Land Use, meeting on April 2, 2019.

Councilor Davis reported on the discussion, primarily about building types and uses in the zoning overhaul in the NR and UR Zones. Planner Dan Bartman presented slides that are available at www.somervillezoning.com. The consensus was support for allowing a third unit, if that unit was deed-restricted.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

#### 29. LEGISLATIVE MATTERS COMMITTEE

A. Committee Report 207935 (ID:20721) Report of the Committee on Legislative Matters, meeting on April 4, 2019.

Councilor Niedergang reported that this "first ever" afternoon meeting was the first of two public hearings on the Home Rule Petition to provide voting rights in municipal elections to 16 and 17 year-olds, scheduled just after the end of the High School day. 7 people spoke, including 5 young people, and everyone spoke in favor of the Petition.

B. Order 206368 (ID:19141) By City Councilor Ewen-Campen, Davis, Hirsch, Mbah, Niedergang, Clingan That the Administration present this Board with legal options for granting noncitizen residents the right to vote in local elections.

#### RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

C. Order 206403 (ID:19191) By City Councilor Ewen-Campen, McLaughlin, Davis, Hirsch, Mbah That the City Solicitor draft a home rule petition to grant Permanent Residents the right to vote in municipal elections.

#### RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

D. Mayor's Request 206804 (ID:19586)

Requesting approval of a Home Rule Petition to provide legal voting rights for residents aged 16 and older.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

#### 30. LEGISLATIVE MATTERS COMMITTEE

A. Committee Report 207936 (ID:20722) Report of the Committee on Legislative Matters, meeting as a Committee of the Whole on April 4, 2019.

Councilor Niedergang reported on the items discussed, including the second public hearing on voting rights in municipal elections for 16 and 17-yearolds. 8 people testified, 6 in favor, 1 against, and 1 with neither for nor against. The Committee then discussed the report of the Clean and Open Elections Task Force and its more than 20 recommendations. The Committee asked for the Administration's position, and Mayor's liaison Annie Connors said there were 4 that they would prioritize: recommendations on public financing, using campaign funds for child and elder care services, aligning municipal elections with state elections, and using ranked-choice voting. Councilor White noted that many of these are regulated by the State and would represent major changes in the way voting is done in the Commonwealth, and it could be difficult to move forward on them. The Committee then discussed reducing the terms of Planning and Zoning Board Members to 3 years, from 5. SPCD Director George Proakis expressed support for the 5-year term, and several Councilors favored a 3year term. Councilors Davis and McLaughlin suggested rolling the change into the Zoning Overhaul, amending the municipal ordinances, and approving a Home Rule Petition to implement the 3-year terms. Lastly, the Committee discussed a strengthened comprehensive Tree Preservation Ordinance, to protect trees on city and private property. Councilor Scott presented slides describing the proposal, and said revenue from fines would go into a tree replacement fund; the maximum fine could be as much as \$14,000. Councilor Niedergang emphasized that the primary intent of regulating tree cutting on private property is to prevent developers from clear-cutting properties, not to affect homeowners or residents.

B. Order

By City Councilor McLaughlin

207178 (ID:20025)

(ID:20730)

That this Board take steps to reduce the terms of the Planning and Zoning Board members from 5 to 3 years.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

C. Order 207937

By City Councilor McLaughlin

That the Director of SPCD update the zoning overhaul draft to reflect a 3-year term for Planning Board members.

RESULT: APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Land Use Committee

D. Order 207938 (ID:20731) By City Councilor McLaughlin

That the City Solicitor draft an ordinance to reflect a 3-year term for Planning Board members.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Legislative Matters Committee

E. Order 207939 (ID:20732) By City Councilor McLaughlin

That the City Solicitor draft a Home Rule Petition to change the Zoning Board of Appeals members' terms to 3 years.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Legislative Matters Committee

#### 31. LICENSES AND PERMITS COMMITTEE

A. Committee Report 207940 (ID:20727) Report of the Committee on Licenses and Permits, meeting on April 10, 2019.

Councilor Rossetti reported on the meeting. First there was a public hearing on the application by Sam's Falafel and Shawarma, 215 Highland Ave, for an extended operating hours license, to remain open to 3AM. Some residents had concerns about trash and rodents, and owner Sam Edressi said the landlord has agreed to increase trash pickup to 3 times per week, paid for by all of the restaurants in the building. The Committee decided to recommend extending the hours on a 6-month trial to 2AM weekdays and 2:30AM weekends. Next was a show-cause hearing on the renewal of the junk dealer license held by Tosh Enterprises, 260 Elm St. The Committee reviewed a State Police report of owner Michael Bayles's arrest. Mr. Bayles appeared with his attorney, and discussed along with Somerville Police Detective Stephen Jones the nature of the business, and his ongoing cooperation with respect to tracking and reporting the items he takes in, including stolen items. He said he frequently uses an alias, and that's what he did with the State Trooper. City Clerk John Long reported that he has received no documented complaints about the business. Mr. Bayles offered a video of his interaction with the State Trooper, which the Committee was unable to view for technical reasons. Chair Rossetti recommended that the show-cause hearing remain open until the viewing of the video and/or resolution of the criminal complaint, and the Committee recommended renewal on a 2-1 vote,

with the hearing kept open. Finally, the Committee discussed the renewal of the outdoor parking license held by Star Market at 275 Beacon St. Councilor Scott expressed concern about the store's negative impact on the neighborhood, and how the turnover of managers means that the same concerns keep cropping up. He said he had spoken with the current store manager, who didn't object to any of the conditions that Councilor Scott proposed. Councilor Scott then proposed approval with those conditions enumerated, noting that the conditions can remain on the license as long as it is issued.

**RESULT: APPROVED** 

B. Grant of Location 207148 (ID:19939) Submitted by Cambridge Network Solutions to install 119 feet of conduit in Medford St at Walnut St, from the communications manhole near 299 Medford Street to the communications manhole in the sidewalk at the intersection of the two streets.

PLACED ON FILE **RESULT:** 

C. Grant of Location 207354 (ID:20218) Submitted by Eversource and Verizon New England to install one joint-owned pole in the sidewalk at 10 Ward St.

**RESULT:** PLACED ON FILE

D. 207558 (ID:20363)

License/Permit New Extended Operating Hours License, Sam's Falafel and Shawarma, 215 Highland Ave, remaining open to 3AM Mon-Sat for in-store, take-out, and delivery service.

> **RESULT:** APPROVED AS AMENDED

Operating hours set at 2:00 AM Sunday - Thursday, 2:30 AMENDED:

AM Friday - Saturday, for 6 months only.

E. 207852 (ID:20629)

License/Permit Renewing Junk Dealer's License, Tosh Enterprises, 260 Elm St.

**RESULT:** 

APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

**CONDITION**: The Show-Cause Hearing that was held on 4/10/19 on

the issuance of this License shall remain open pending the viewing of the licensee's video and/or a

determination of the court case.

F. 207861 (ID:20635)

License/Permit Renewing Outdoor Parking License, Star Market, 275 Beacon St.

**RESULT: CONDITIONS:** 

#### APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS

1) Deliveries and dumpster removals must be between 7AM and 7PM; 2) The neighborhood must be notified before resurfacing work is done between 7PM and 7AM;

3) Stormwater drainage on the property must be maintained in a satisfactory condition; and 4) Access to Kent Court must be kept clear of snow, overgrowth and

debris.

#### 32. PUBLIC HEALTH AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

A. Committee Report 207941 (ID:20718) Report of the Committee on Public Health and Public Safety, meeting on April 1, 2019.

Councilor Clingan reported that the discussion focused on autism, efforts to support individuals on the autism spectrum, and education for first responders about autism. Police Chief Dave Fallon discussed crisis intervention training, and a program to inform the Police that a person with autism lives in a given home. There is also a program called STEPS, which focuses on police officer interactions with kids in grade school and may be extended to kids with autism. Parents of children with autism attended the meeting, and there was discussion of sensory-friendly activities. The Committee recommended that the Parks and Recreation Department work with interested parents and caregivers to design a summer program to support those who have children with autism. The Committee also briefly discussed unsolved homicides, and learned from the Chief that over the last 35 years, there have been 13 unsolved homicides in Somerville.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

B. Order 206854 (ID:19654) By City Councilor Hirsch, Mbah

That the Director of Health and Human Services work with the Public Schools to allow whole fruits to be saved for use as snacks, given that many children often go without snacks.

RESULT: REFERRED FOR DISCUSSION

**FOLLOWUP:** Youth Services Committee

C. Order 207162 (ID:19999) By City Councilor Clingan, Hirsch

That the Director of Health and Human Services develop a resident checklist for emergency preparedness, including plans to help needy neighbors, and including the "Are You OK" Program.

RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

D. Order 207658 (ID:20480) By City Councilor Clingan

That the Chief of Police provide this Council with a list of the unsolved homicides over the past 35 years.

RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

E. Order 207942 (ID:20717) By City Councilor Hirsch

That the Director of Parks and Recreation design with interested parents and caregivers a summer program to support those who have children with autism disorder.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Public Health and Public Safety Committee

#### 33. RODENT ISSUES SPECIAL COMMITTEE

### A. Committee Report 207943 (ID:20723)

Report of the Special Committee on Rodent Issues, meeting on April 8, 2019.

Councilor McLaughlin reported that the City is going to implement a new rodent-control initiative. Property owners in Ward 1 will soon be receiving some important information, and the City will perform a rat population survey to help to design better preventative strategies. Residents can call 617-625-6600 x 2253 with questions or concerns.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

# B. Resolution

By City Councilor McLaughlin

200246 (ID:12939) That the Administration request rodent sightings be placed as an icon on the Commonwealth Connect app.

#### RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

### C. Order 200628 (ID:13272)

By City Councilor McLaughlin

That the Supervisor of Inspectional Services consider increasing fines for businesses in violation of rodent prevention measures.

#### RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

### D. Resolution 203792 (ID:16498)

By City Councilor Sullivan, McLaughlin, Connolly, Rossetti, White Jr. That the Administration utilize the drug Senestech to sterilize rats as one of many measures to control the rodent population.

#### RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

# E. Order 207379 (ID:20204)

By City Councilor Hirsch, McLaughlin

That the Commissioner of Public Works explain to this Board the process for procuring, maintaining, and repairing or replacing rodent-proof trash barrels.

#### RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

## F. Order 207572 (ID:20376)

By City Councilor Niedergang

That the Director of Inspectional Services bait the sewers around the intersection of Highland Avenue and Lowell Street, then down the east side of Lowell Street to Hudson Street and along the north side of Hudson Street from Lowell Street to 80 Hudson Street.

#### RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

## G. Order 207944 (ID:20811)

By City Councilor Ewen-Campen

That the Director of Health and Human Services provide the Special Committee on Rodent Issues with an update of the Department's rodent survey.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Rodent Issues Special Committee

#### 34. TRAFFIC AND PARKING COMMITTEE

A. Committee Report 207945 (ID:20720)

Report of the Committee on Traffic and Parking, meeting as a Committee of the Whole on April 3, 2019.

Councilor Niedergang reported that the meeting started with a public hearing on a petition organized by the Pedestrian and Transit Advocacy Group to urge the city to accelerate and coordinate traffic calming investments. The petition, signed by over 350 people, was a reaction to the tragic death of Allison Donovan on Powderhouse Blvd. Transportation Director Brad Rawson described the Vision Zero process, and there was extensive discussion about how do move forward in terms of safety on our streets.

**RESULT: APPROVED** 

#### YOUTH SERVICES COMMITTEE 35.

A. Committee Report 207946 (ID:20725) Report of the Committee on Youth Services, meeting on April 8, 2019.

Councilor Davis reported on the items discussed at the meeting. The Committee discussed with Sustainability Director Oliver Sellers-Garcia the pilot program for food waste and recycling in school cafeterias, and how it may roll out district-wide in the fall. Councilor Davis requested that the Administration include in the FY20 budget the funding necessary to fund it. There was also a presentation about the Summer Learning 2030 Visioning Process, and a discussion about possible snow-day programming so families would have the opportunity for child care on snow days. The Committee asked whether school gyms could be opened, or other programs be provided. Finally, the Committee discussed public access to the Kennedy School Pool, and a petition from 185 citizens requesting expanded access.

**RESULT: APPROVED** 

В. Officer's 204582 (ID:17311)

Director of Parks & Recreation and City Solicitor responding to #204160, Communication #203889, and #203733 re: nonprofit soccer and football organizations' use of Dilboy Field.

> **RESULT:** WORK COMPLETED

C. Order 204996 (ID:17775) By City Councilor Hirsch, Ballantyne, Clingan

That this Board's Committee on Youth Services organize one or more workshops to ask tweens and young teens about how the city can make sure our community is a great place for them to live.

**RESULT:** WORK COMPLETED

D. Resolution 205360 (ID:18124) By City Councilor Hirsch

That the Administration share plans for this summer's youth jobs program, including the cost to nonprofits for hiring youths and any opportunity to create stipend work for younger teens in local nonprofits.

**RESULT:** WORK COMPLETED E. Resolution 205438 (ID:18201) By City Councilor Hirsch, Clingan, and the Entire Board

That the Administration consider the following steps to address the field space crisis: petition DCR for a waiver for a reduced expectation to schedule regional uses, cover costs of using Dilboy for teams displaced from less expensive fields to Dilboy, and prioritize youth sports over adults sports for field usage.

#### RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

F. Order 205669 (ID:18418) By City Councilor Clingan, Rossetti, McLaughlin

That the Director of Parks and Recreation prioritize Somerville youth sports leagues before any adult sports leagues from outside the city until the city's field conflicts are resolved.

#### RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

G. Order 206302 (ID:19077) By City Councilor Hirsch, Ballantyne

That the Director of Parks and Recreation report on how often the public outdoor pools reach capacity and what, if any, pool staffing or policy changes may enable more people to access pools on hot days.

#### RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

H. Officer's Parks and Recreation Di Communication utilization and capacity.

Parks and Recreation Director responding to #206302 re: outdoor pool utilization and conscity.

206457 (ID:19155)

RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

I. Order 206644 (ID:19419) By City Councilor Hirsch, Ballantyne

That the Director of SomerPromise or Health and Human Services provide this Board with an overview of the Somerville Learning 2030 initiative and how the Board may be involved.

RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

J. Resolution 207154

(ID:19991)

By City Councilor Hirsch

That the Administration share how the SomerVision 2040 process will be linked to the Somerville Learning 2030 City/District visioning process.

RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

K. Order 207436 (ID:20229) By City Councilor Hirsch

That the Director of Parks and Recreation work with the School Dept. and SomerPromise to pilot neighborhood-based snow-day care at each elementary school.

RESULT: WORK COMPLETED

L. Resolution 207947 (ID:20812) By City Councilor Davis

That the Administration include in the FY20 Budget, the funding necessary to expand school cafeteria recycling and food waste reduction and collection programs to all schools.

**RESULT:** APPROVED FOLLOWUP: Finance Committee

M. Resolution 207948 (ID:20813) By City Councilor Davis

That the Administration report to this Council the specific plans to expand school cafeteria recycling and food waste reduction and collection programs beyond the current pilot program.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Youth Services Committee

#### **COMMUNICATIONS OF THE MAYOR**

36. Mayor's Request 207949 (ID:20788) Requesting approval of a Grant of Easement Agreement with the MBTA.

City Engineer Rich Raiche explained that there are several easements needed by the MBTA to construct and operate the Green Line Extension. He noted that the High School construction is happening next to the Gilman Square track work, and there are occasional conflicts between the two projects. He urged approval, to lock in some benefits from the GLX in exchange for the easements. There are three types of easements: permanent easements, mostly for retaining walls; vertical easements, mostly for tiebacks to reinforce walls; and temporary easements, used during construction only. He said that the easement agreement will better coordinate GLX work with the High School work, to save the city money on construction costs. Mr. Raiche said that the GLX will use Junction Park for construction staging and work on retaining walls, but will restore it after the project is complete. They will also use the Homan's Building site, but grant about 20 parking spaces for city use. They will build GLX drainage systems, but let the city tie into it, and, where their work interfaces with some of our infrastructure needs, they will negotiate ways to work together to save the city money.

RESULT: APPROVED. [UNANIMOUS]

AYES: Mbah, Rossetti, White Jr., McLaughlin, Scott, Ewen-

Campen, Clingan, Niedergang, Davis, Ballantyne

**ABSENT:** Hirsch

37. Mayor's Request 207950 (ID:20789) Requesting the appropriation of \$88,750 from Unreserved Fund Balance ("Free Cash") to the City Clerk's Office Equipment-Capitalized Account in order to purchase and install high density shelving in the new municipal archives at 42 Cross St.

Councilor White stated that this request was discussed at the last Finance Committee meeting.

38. Mayor's Request 207951 (ID:20734) Requesting a transfer of \$40,000 from the SPCD Housing Division Professional and Technical Services Account to the SPCD Admin Legal Services Account to engage outside eminent domain counsel to defend the Redevelopment Authority in the acquisition of 90 Washington St.

Councilor White requested to waive the readings of items 38 through 40 and refer them to the Finance Committee. There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

**RESULT:** REFERRED FOR RECOMMENDATION

**FOLLOWUP:** Finance Committee

39. Mayor's Request 207952 (ID:20733)

Requesting a transfer of \$37,863.99 from the Office of Housing Stability Professional and Technical Account to the SPCD Finance and Admin Land Acquisition Account for final closing costs for 90 Washington St.

REFERRED FOR RECOMMENDATION **RESULT:** 

**FOLLOWUP:** Finance Committee

40. Mayor's Request 207953 (ID:20712) Requesting approval to pay prior year invoices totaling \$37,778.81 using available funds in the Department of Public Works Buildings and Grounds and Highway Division Accounts for invoices received after the close of FY18.

REFERRED FOR RECOMMENDATION **RESULT:** 

**FOLLOWUP: Finance Committee** 

#### COMMUNICATIONS OF CITY OFFICERS

41. Officer's

City Solicitor requesting to amend a contract and appear in Executive Session Communication to discuss a matter of potential litigation.

207954 (ID:20729)

**RESULT:** REFERRED FOR RECOMMENDATION

**FOLLOWUP:** Finance Committee

42. Officer's 207955

Retirement Board notifying this City Council of a vote at the Retirement Communication Board's May 23, 2019 meeting regarding a 2019 Cost of Living Adjustment for eligible retirees.

(ID:20713)

President Ballantyne requested to waive the reading of item 42 and place it on file. There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

**RESULT:** PLACED ON FILE

#### **NEW BUSINESS**

43. 207956

(ID:20800)

License/Permit Public Event License, Arts Council Spring Cleanup, Citywide and Blessing of the Bay Boathouse, May 4, 8AM-1PM.

> Councilor Rossetti requested to waive the readings of items 43 through 80 and approve them. There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

44.	License/Permit 207957 (ID:20801)	Public Event License, Taza Chocolate Spring Block Party, Windsor Pl from Windsor St to Columbia St, May 4, 9AM-6PM (raindate May 5).		
		RESULT:	APPROVED	
207958	207958		ense, Linear Park Neighborhood Kids Exploration, Linear St to Willow Ave, May 5, 8:30-10:30AM.	
	(ID:20802)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
2079	207959		ense, Union Sq Farmers Market, Union Sq Plaza and Parking ay 18-Nov 23, 7AM-2PM.	
	(ID:20803)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
47. License/Permit 207960 (ID:20804)		ense, Arts Council SomerStreets Carnaval, Broadway from Pennsylvania Ave, Jun 2, Noon-8PM (raindate Jun 9).		
	(ID:20804)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
48.	License/Permit 207961 (ID:20805)		ense, Somerville Sports Club Devino Esperito Santo comerville Ave to 262 Washington St and back, Jun 9, 10AM-	
		RESULT:	APPROVED	
49. License/Permit 207962 (ID:20806)		ense, CJD Foundation Strides for CJD 5K Walk, Seven Hills nity Path to Cambridge, Oct 5, 6AM-1PM (raindate Oct 19).		
	(ID:20806)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
50. License/Perm 207963 (ID:20736)		Renewing Drainlayer's License, NCCL Enterprises.		
		RESULT:	APPROVED	
51. License/Perm 207964 (ID:20737)		Renewing Drainla	ayer's License, Galway Excavation.	
		RESULT:	APPROVED	
52. License/Permit 207965 (ID:20738)		Renewing Drainla	ayer's License, Caruso Corp.	
		RESULT:	APPROVED	
53.	License/Permit	Renewing Drainla	ayer's License, Baystate Engineering.	
	207966 (ID:20739)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
54.	License/Permit 207967 (ID:20740)	Renewing Drainla	ayer's License, Borges Sewer and Drain.	
		RESULT:	APPROVED	

	Renewing Flamn	nables License, Nissenbaum Auto Parts, 480 Columbia St.
207968 (ID:20741)	RESULT:	APPROVED
License/Permit 207969 (ID:20742)	Renewing Flamn	nables License, Pearl St Auto Sales, 182 Pearl St.
	RESULT:	APPROVED
License/Permit	Renewing Flamn	nables License, Broadway Sunoco, 258 Broadway.
207970 (ID:20743)	RESULT:	APPROVED
License/Permit	Renewing Flamn	nables License, Simon's Auto Service, 166 Boston Ave.
207971 (ID:20744)	RESULT:	APPROVED
	•	nables License, Cambridge Health Alliance, 230 Highland
(ID:20745)	RESULT:	APPROVED
Licanca/Parmit	Renewing Garage	e License, K Professional Auto Detailing, 682 Mystic Ave.
207973	RESULT:	APPROVED
	Renewing Garag	e License Leins Auto Renair 69 Row St
207974	RESULT:	APPROVED
,	Renewing Garag	e License Pearl St Auto Sales 182 Pearl St
207975	RESULT:	APPROVED
	Renewing Garage	e License Tech Auto Body 9 Union Sa
207976	RESULT:	APPROVED
,	Danawing Carag	a License Cone Automotive Denois 56 Jay St
207977 (ID:20750)		APPROVED
	RESULT:	ALLKUVED
License/Permit 207978 (ID:20751)	Renewing Garag	e License, Broadway Sunoco, 258 Broadway.
	<b>RESULT:</b>	APPROVED
		e License, Simon's Auto Service, 166 Boston Ave.
	207968 (ID:20741)  License/Permit 207969 (ID:20742)  License/Permit 207970 (ID:20743)  License/Permit 207971 (ID:20744)  License/Permit 207972 (ID:20745)  License/Permit 207973 (ID:20746)  License/Permit 207974 (ID:20747)  License/Permit 207975 (ID:20748)  License/Permit 207976 (ID:20749)  License/Permit 207977 (ID:20750)  License/Permit	207968 (ID:20741)  License/Permit 207969 (ID:20742)  License/Permit 207970 (ID:20743)  License/Permit 207971 (ID:20744)  License/Permit 207972 (ID:20745)  Renewing Flamm RESULT:  Renewing Flamm RESULT:  Renewing Flamm RESULT:  Renewing Flamm Ave.  RESULT:  Renewing Garag RESULT:  License/Permit 207973 (ID:20746)  License/Permit 207974 (ID:20747)  Renewing Garag RESULT:  License/Permit 207975 (ID:20748)  Renewing Garag RESULT:  Renewing Garag RESULT:

67. License/Perr 207980 (ID:20753)	207980	Renewing Extended Operating Hours License, Dumpling Kitchen, 217 Highland Ave.		
	(ID:20753)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
68. License/Permit 207981 (ID:20754)	Renewing Extende 137 Washington St	d Operating Hours License, Cataldo Ambulance Service,		
	RESULT:	APPROVED		
69.	207982	Renewing Extende Broadway.	d Operating Hours License, Wang's Fast Food, 509	
(ID:20755)	(ID:20755)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
70.		Renewing Extende	d Operating Hours License, Dunkin Donuts, 504 Broadway.	
207983 (ID:20756)		RESULT:	APPROVED	
71.	207984	Renewing Billiards Broadway.	s and Bowling License, Dark Horse Public House, 499	
(ID:20757)	(ID:20757)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
72.	License/Permit 207985 (ID:20758)	Renewing Used Ca	ar Dealers License Class 2, Pearl St Auto Sales, 182 Pearl St.  APPROVED	
73.	License/Permit	Renewing Taxi Me	edallion License, TR Cab, Med #2.	
207986 (ID:20759)	RESULT:	APPROVED		
20798	License/Permit	Renewing Taxi Me	edallion License, 32 Summer St Corp, Med #29.	
	207987 (ID:20760)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
207988		Renewing Taxi Me	edallion License, SJP Taxi, Med #45.	
	(ID:20761)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
76.	License/Permit 207989	Renewing Taxi Me	edallion License, Jolina Taxi, Med #52.	
	(ID:20762)	RESULT:	APPROVED	
77.	License/Permit 207990 (ID:20763)	Renewing Taxi Me	edallion License, LTK, Med #66.	
		RESULT:	APPROVED	

78. License/Permit Renewing Taxi Medallion License, Silva Cab, Med #83.

207991 (ID:20764)

RESULT: APPROVED

79. License/Permit Renewing Taxi Medallion License, Michael Cab, Med #88.

207992 (ID:20765)

RESULT: APPROVED

80. License/Permit New Outdoor Seating License, Gauchao Brazilian Cuisine, 102 Broadway, 3 207993 tables, 12 chairs, 2 planters.

(ID:20766)

RESULT: APPROVED

81. License/Permit New Used Car Dealer Class 2 License, Real Auto Shop, 39 Webster Ave, 0 207994 vehicles inside, 20 outside, opening Mon-Fri 8AM-7PM, Sat 8AM-3PM, Sun (ID:20787) Closed.

RESULT: REFERRED FOR RECOMMENDATION

**FOLLOWUP:** Licenses and Permits Committee

82. Public District Attorney responding to #196432 re: the investigation of the murder of Communication Deanna Cremin.

207995 (ID:20793)

President Ballantyne requested to waive the reading of item 82 and place it on file. There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

President Ballantyne requested to waive the reading of item 83 and place it

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

83. Public 8 residents submitting comments re: #207499, a proposal to accelerate traffic Communication calming investments.

Communicati 207996 (ID:20797)

on file with a copy to the Traffic and Parking Committee. There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

**FOLLOWUP:** Traffic and Parking Committee

84. Public 10 residents submitting comments re: #204323, a proposal for Powderhouse Communication Blvd. safe bicycling.

207997 (ID:20798)

President Ballantyne requested to waive the reading of item 84 and place it on file with a copy to Traffic and Parking Committee. There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

**FOLLOWUP:** Traffic and Parking Committee

85. Public

4 residents submitting comments re: #207393, permitting 16-17 year-olds to Communication vote in municipal elections.

207998 (ID:20796)

President Ballantyne requested to waive the readings of items 85 and 86 place them on file with a copy to the Committee on Legislative Matters.

There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

**RESULT:** PLACED ON FILE

**FOLLOWUP:** Legislative Matters Committee

86. **Public** Communication ordinance.

3 residents submitting comments re: #206495, the proposed native plant

207999

(ID:20799)

**RESULT:** PLACED ON FILE

**FOLLOWUP:** Legislative Matters Committee

87. **Public** Communication with snow.

Staying Put Somerville-Cambridge submitting comments re: seniors' struggle

208000 (ID:20795)

President Ballantyne requested to waive the reading of item 87 and place it

on file. There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

PLACED ON FILE RESULT:

#### SUPPLEMENTAL ITEMS

88. Order By City Councilor Ballantyne

That the Director of Finance provide this Council a 10-year revenue projection 208001 (ID:20807) before the Council's Finance Committee meeting on April 23.

> **RESULT: APPROVED FOLLOWUP:** Finance Committee

89. Order By City Councilor McLaughlin

208002 That the Director of Traffic and Parking place a NOT A THROUGH WAY

(ID:20808) sign on Knowlton Street by Tufts Street.

RESULT: **APPROVED** 

90. Order By City Councilor McLaughlin

208003 That the City Arborist plant a tree at 4 Otis Street.

(ID:20809) **RESULT: APPROVED** 

91. Order By City Councilor McLaughlin

That the Director of Traffic and Parking place signage on both sides of Alston 208004 Street to prevent cut through traffic and encourage pedestrian and bike use, as (ID:20810)

described in the GLX construction plan.

92. Resolution 208005 (ID:20814)

By City Councilor Davis

Thanking the members of the State Delegation for sponsoring H720, the EMPOWER Act, to remove the requirement for a Home Rule Petition for municipalities wishing to lower the voting age to 16, and urging the passage of this legislation.

Councilor Davis said the Empower Act would make it easier for municipalities wishing to lower the voting age to 16.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

93. Order 208006 (ID:20815)

By City Councilor Davis, Niedergang

That the Director of Traffic and Parking install traffic calming measures, potentially including flexposts, on Lexington Avenue, particularly at its intersections with Lesley Avenue and Hancock Street, to slow cut-through traffic.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

94. Order 208007 (ID:20816) By City Councilor Davis, Ballantyne

That the Director of Traffic and Parking replace the pedestrian safety signs on Broadway at its intersection with Simpson Avenue.

Councilor Davis heard that this sign was back up today.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

95. Order 208008 (ID:20817)

By City Councilor Davis, Ballantyne

That the Director of SPCD implement traffic calming and pedestrian and cyclist safety measures on Broadway from Powder House Circle to Teele Square.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Traffic and Parking Committee

96. Order 208009 (ID:20818)

By City Councilor Scott

That the Director of Traffic and Parking install traffic signage at the corner of Durham and Beacon Streets. (2nd request on #s 206437, 205368, 206920, and 204315)

**RESULT:** APPROVED

97. Order 208010 (ID:20819) By City Councilor Scott

That the Director of Engineering and appropriate staff report on the date and method of implementation of the residential exemption for sewer and water charges.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Public Utilities and Public Works Committee

98. Order 208011 (ID:20820)

By City Councilor Scott, Davis

That the Director of Engineering and appropriate staff discuss with this Council the legal limits of progressive water and sewer rate assessments.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

**FOLLOWUP:** Public Utilities and Public Works Committee

99. Mayor's Request 208012 (ID:20821) Requesting the appropriation of \$854,038 from the Salary Contingency Account to various departmental Personal Services Accounts to fund the FY19 costs of the Memorandum of Agreement with SMEA Unit B.

President Ballantyne requested to waive the readings of items 99 and 100 and refer them to the Finance Committee. There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

RESULT: REFERRED FOR RECOMMENDATION

**FOLLOWUP:** Finance Committee

100. Mayor's Request 208013 (ID:20826) Requesting the appropriation of \$74,095 from the Salary Contingency Account to various departmental Salaries Accounts in order to establish and fund several new positions as part of the SMEA B Memorandum of Agreement.

RESULT: REFERRED FOR RECOMMENDATION

**FOLLOWUP:** Finance Committee

101. License/Permit 208014 (ID:20827)

Public Event License, Boy Scout Minutemen Pursuit Trail Hike, Prospect Hill, Apr 19, 4-5PM.

Councilor Rossetti requested to waive the readings of items 101 through 105 and approve them. There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

**RESULT:** APPROVED

102. License/Permit 208015

License/Permit Renewing Taxi Medallion License, Elzira and Luc Inc, Med #6.

208015 (ID:20823)

**RESULT:** APPROVED

103. License/Permi 208016

License/Permit Renewing Taxi Medallion License, Yolande Trans, Med #15.

208016 (ID:20824)

RESULT: APPROVED

104. License/Permit 208017

License/Permit Renewing Taxi Medallion License, Edelle Cab, Med #20.

208017 (ID:20825)

**RESULT:** APPROVED

105. License/Permit 208018

License/Permit Renewing Taxi Medallion License, Sadel and G Transportation, Med #70.

(ID:20794)

106. Public Anne Taylo Communication Ordinance.

Anne Taylor submitting comments re: #207461 and #207498, Tree Protection Ordinance

208019 (ID:20822)

President Ballantyne requested to waive the reading of item 106 and place it on file with a copy to the Legislative Matters Committee. There being no opposition, the motion was approved.

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE

**FOLLOWUP:** Legislative Matters Committee

#### **LATE ITEMS**

#### **ADJOURNMENT**

The meeting was Adjourned at 11:05 PM.